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To:  Zoning Code Rewrite RFP Distribution List 

Date: March 25, 2021 

From:  Mark Opitz, City Planner & Zoning Administrator  

Subject: Responses to questions about City of Middleton RFP  

  

 

Below are responses to each of the questions the City has received regarding the RFP we released on 

March 3: 

 

Question 1:  To what extent will the city’s attorney be involved in reviewing materials or should the 

consultant team include an experienced land use attorney? 

 

Response: As stated in the Guidance regarding Best Practices section, the City expects that the selected 

consultant team will make recommendations that are consistent with Wisconsin law and regulations. 

City staff will consult with the city attorney if legal questions arise as the ordinance is rewritten, and 

the attorney will be involved in codifying the final product to make sure it meshes properly with other 

city ordinances. However, the consultant team should not have the expectation that the city attorney 

will be actively involved as the new ordinance is drafted. 

 

Question 2: Does the rewrite involve chapters other than Chapter 10 (Zoning) and the Standards for 

Off-Street Parking Areas & Landscaping section? 

 

Response: While the focus of this project is to rewrite the zoning ordinance, it is quite likely that issues 

will surface that relate to a few other municipal ordinances, particularly Land Division and Subdivision 

Regulations (Chapter 19) and the Sign Code (Chapter 22).  City staff will work with the consultant 

team to identify potential changes required to other city ordinances and then address these with the city 

attorney during the codification process.  

 

In addition to the listed ordinances, it would be highly desirable if a member of the consultant team is 

also familiar with the City’s access management policy, available here: 

https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/206/Traffic 

 

Question 3:  Is the creation of new zoning districts anticipated to be part of this project? If so, can you 

share generally how many and what types of new zoning districts are anticipated? 

 

Response: Yes. Page 9 of the City’s new comprehensive plan summarizes key city priorities in the land 

use and housing chapters as they relate specifically to this project. There are also a few actions in other 

chapters of the comprehensive plan that will help guide revisions to the zoning code. For example, 

there is quite a variety in the size of lots that are currently zoned R1. This has led to numerous variance 

requests, particularly for smaller lots. This project will help the City determine how best to adjust 

dimensional standards so as to reduce the number of variance requests. This likely will lead to separate 

zoning classifications for larger and smaller lots.  

 

Link to City’s comprehensive plan:   

https://www.cityofmiddleton.us/DocumentCenter/View/8030/2021-Comp-Plan_3-2-2021  
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Question 4:  Are the five unique areas (neighborhoods, corridors, districts) that need context-sensitive 

regulations primarily historic areas or other types of areas? 

 

Response: The RFP noted that there are “up to five such areas”, and city staff will work with the 

consultant to identify those areas. The Character chapter of the City’s comprehensive plan will help 

inform the identification of areas, but three that readily come to mind include include the Historic 

Pheasant Branch Crossing District (near the intersection of Century Avenue and Branch Street), 

downtown Middleton, and perhaps the two-lane portion of Parmenter Street extending north from 

downtown. 

 

Question 5: What is the expectation of the City related to the consultant’s involvement in these public 

engagement events (developing a strategy for public input throughout the process, designing each 

individual event, creating meeting materials for each event, attendance at each individual event, etc.)?  

 

Response: As noted, the consultant will develop a public outreach strategy designed to inform 

community stakeholders and the general public about the rezoning rewrite project. The consultant will 

NOT be responsible for facilitating meetings and web/social media interaction. City staff will facilitate 

all public input opportunities, including scheduling and preparing for meetings, presentations, and/or 

workshops associated with the preparation and adoption of the new ordinance. While the consultant is 

welcome to observe any public meeting, the City has not established this expectation so that the 

consultant’s project budget can be devoted to other resources.  

 

Question 6:  What is the Plan Commission’s role during the consultant’s development of the new 

Zoning Ordinance (receiving updates on the process, providing input on policy decisions, content 

review and comment, etc.)? In other words, is it the City’s intent that the Plan Commission will only be 

involved with content and policy discussions following the consultant’s development of the new full 

draft Zoning Ordinance or during the development of the new full draft Zoning Ordinance?  

 

Response: With the consent of the Common Council, City staff have created a three-person work group 

with one representative each from the Plan Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals, and Sustainability 

Committee. The purpose of this work group is to prepare a recommendation on the consultant proposal 

to accept; meet at the beginning of the process with the selected firm and provide early guidance; meet 

in the middle of the process with the selected firm to review the initial draft ordinance and provide 

feedback; and then meet near the end of the process to finalize the ordinance for Plan Commission 

review. City Planning staff will confer with the work group to determine when it would be beneficial to 

obtain Plan Commission input on any substantial policy matters that arise during the course of the 

project, but the primary policy guidance will come from the work group and City staff.   

 

Question 7:  If the consultant estimates that the project scope and responsibilities will not use the entire 

project budget as listed in the RFP, is the City open to reviewing and considering additional possible 

work elements, public input opportunities, other products, etc.?  

 

Response: Yes.  

 

Question 8:  Does the consultant’s role in the Zoning Ordinance rewrite process include addressing the 

Extraterritorial Zoning provisions within the existing Zoning Ordinance (Section 10.96 Zoning 

Regulations in Middleton/Westport Joint Planning Area)?  

 

Response: These provisions exist in the ordinance as the result of an intergovernmental agreement 

between the City and Town of Westport, and they cannot be amended unless and until approval of such 



 

amendment has been recommended by a majority vote of the six-member Joint Planning Committee 

(now called the Middleton/Westport Joint Zoning Committee) after following the procedures for 

amendment under section 62.23(7a) of Wisconsin statutes. Keeping this in mind, the consultant team is 

welcome to offer suggestions for how to improve on the City’s zoning administration in this geographic 

area. 

 

Question 9:  Is there an expectation that the new Zoning Map will be produced in a way that can be 

displayed and published on an interactive mapping application?  

 

Response: The consultant will work with City staff as well as its information technology team to make 

the new code accessible and interactive with the public. However, City staff will be responsible for 

updating the Zoning Map. 

 

Question 10:  Are there issues with any of the following existing areas of the City’s Zoning Ordinance 

that need to be addressed through the consultant’s development of the new Zoning Ordinance? 

A. Public Hearing notification distances  

B. Regulation of food trucks, trailers, pop-up uses, etc. on private property  

C. Protection of key community vistas or upland environmental components that are not within the 

protected CARPC environmental corridors  

 

Response: 

A. No. 

B. Yes. The project could help the City identify when these uses are allowed on private property—

whether they are permitted by right (in accordance with certain standards) or as conditional 

uses, and whether they are required to be accessory to a principal use of property.  

C. The City’s current ordinance has Lowland Conservancy and Upland Conservancy 

classifications. The consultant team is welcome to suggest extending these or similar 

classifications to other geographic areas of the City that are identified as part of this project. 


